Selby District Council



Minutes

Executive

Venue:	Committee Room - Civic Centre, Doncaster Road, Selby, YO8 9FT
Date:	Thursday, 13 June 2019
Time:	4.00 pm
Present:	Councillors M Crane (Chair), R Musgrave (Vice- Chair), C Lunn, C Pearson and D Buckle
Also Present:	Councillors R Packham
Officers Present:	Janet Waggott (Chief Executive), Dave Caulfield (Director of Economic Regeneration and Place), Julie Slatter (Director of Corporate Services & Commissioning), Karen Iveson (Chief Finance Officer (s151)), Stuart Robinson (Head of Business Development and Improvement), June Rothwell (Head of Operational Services) and Mike James (Communications and Marketing Manager)
Officers Present: Public:	(Director of Economic Regeneration and Place), Julie Slatter (Director of Corporate Services & Commissioning), Karen Iveson (Chief Finance Officer (s151)), Stuart Robinson (Head of Business Development and Improvement), June Rothwell (Head of Operational Services) and Mike James

NOTE: Only minute numbers 10 and 11 are subject to call-in arrangements. The deadline for call-in is 5pm on Thursday 27 June 2019. Decisions not called in may be implemented from Friday 28 June 2019.

7 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

There were no apologies for absence.

8 MINUTES

The Executive considered the minutes of the meeting held on 30 May 2019.

RESOLVED:

To approve the minutes of the meeting held on 30 May 2019 for signature by the Chair.

9 DISCLOSURES OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest.

10 CORPORATE PERFORMANCE REPORT - QUARTER 4 -2018/19 (JANUARY TO MARCH) YEAR END 2018/19

The Leader of the Council presented the quarterly performance report which provided a progress update on delivery of the Council's Corporate Plan 2015-20 as measured by a combination of: progress against priority projects/high level actions; and performance against key performance indicators (KPIs).

The Executive made the following comments about the reports:

- The Executive acknowledged the positive performance in relation to the processing of planning application and housing delivery. Additionally it was noted there was positive performance in relation to the number of missed bin collections and the number of visits to combined leisure centres.
- It was acknowledged that the performance in relation to the average time taken to re-let vacant Council homes was still a concern. The Director of Corporate Services and Commissioning explained that during quarter four, 83 properties had been let in an average of 53.2 days. It was noted that some of these properties had required major works before they could be re-let. The Executive was informed that the current figure to re-let homes stood at 41.4 days.
- Discussion took place on whether council tenants could refuse to allow improvement work to be done to their property. The Director of Corporate Services and Commissioning explained that a tenant could refuse the council access to the property unless it was an emergency

Executive Thursday, 13 June 2019 which then meant they would have to apply to the high court for access. It was queried whether the Council could amend the contract with the tenant to ensure they were allowed access for improvement works to be undertaken. It was agreed this would be looked into and a response provided.

- The Executive noted that the performance indicator relating to council housing rent and arrears collected was lower than the target however they acknowledged that the team had done well to maintain the performance in light of the introduction of Universal Credit.
- A query was raised regarding the performance indicator relating to the renting of industrial units particularly in Sherburn. The Director of Corporate Services and Commissioning explained that a funding bid had been submitted to allow improvement works to industrial units however this was subject to a further report being submitted to Executive and this was currently being worked upon. It was noted that currently the Council was unable to re-let units once they became vacant as work relating to energy needed to be carried out before the units could be re-let.
- A query was raised regarding the confidence levels of achieving the savings target for 2019/20 considering the Council was short of the target for 2018/19. The Chief Finance Officer explained that a savings plan was in place for 2019/20 and savings had been identified with a medium or high risk. It was noted that the Council was aiming to push on with projects to assist savings such as the digital strategy and the housing management system.
- It was noted that the performance indicator listed under the processing of planning applications should state 13 weeks rather than 3. A query was raised whether the 13 week figure including planning applications where extension of time had been agreed. It was agreed this would be looked into and a response provided.

RESOLVED:

i) To note and approve the report.

REASON FOR DECISION:

The reporting of performance data enables the Council to demonstrate progress on delivering the Corporate Plan Priorities to make Selby District a great place.

11 AFFORDABLE HOUSING DELIVERY THROUGH RIGHT TO BUY

Executive Thursday, 13 June 2019

BUYBACKS

The Lead Executive Member for Housing, Health and Culture presented the report which sets out, as part of the Council's Housing Development Strategy for increasing its supply of affordable housing stock and Empty Homes programme, the case for the potential purchase of empty properties and former Right to Buy Council properties where the Council had first refusal.

The Lead Executive Member for Housing, Health and Culture explained that the Council had the potential to purchase empty properties and former Right to Buy council properties where it had first refusal. It was noted that each purchase would be dependent on a business case and the Council was able to drawn down from the funding provided by Homes England in respect of the purchase and repair of empty properties.

The following discussion took place on the report:

- In response to a query concerning the price of purchasing, it was noted that the Council would always negotiate the best price for the property to ensure it wasn't overpaying.
- Discussion took place on how the demand for the buyback of council properties. The Executive was informed that around 20 former council properties were sold each year with around 10 being offered back to the Council.
- It was noted that if the property was sold by the buyer within 10 years then the Council had a legal right to know and that this should be flagged by the mortgage company or the solicitor. Furthermore, it was explained that if it was sold within five years of purchase then the seller would be required to pay back the discount they had received. It was noted this would be calculated on a sliding scale up to the five years. A query was raised whether this appeared as a local land charge on the property. It was agreed a response would be sought on this.
- In response to a query concerning if a seller could go back on the council housing waiting list after selling a property, the Head of Operational Services explained that this would only happen in certain specific circumstances.
- A query was raised regarding the works required to the properties to be purchased. The Head of Operational Services explained if work was required to the property, this would be identified in the business case.

It was proposed and seconded that the following amendments be

made to the recommendations:

- It was proposed to remove the reference to leisure for the Lead Executive Member in resolution three as this was not under their portfolio.
- It was proposed that resolution two include a reference to liaising with the Lead Executive Member for Finance and Resources to ensure there was Member input.

RESOLVED:

- To approve extension of the Empty Homes and Housing Development programmes to include the purchase of former Council houses previously sold under the Right to Buy scheme;
- ii) To delegate authority to the Chief Finance Officer in consultation with the Director of Corporate Services and Commissioning and the Lead **Executive Member for Finance and Resources** to determine the most appropriate funding package for these acquisitions drawing on approved funding from Homes England Empty Homes Programme Grant, Section 106 commuted affordable housing sums. prudential borrowing and HRA funding approved for building/acquiring additional council homes:
- iii) To authorise the Director of Corporate Services and Commissioning, in consultation with the Lead Executive Member for Housing, Health and Culture and the Section 151 Officer to purchase properties subject to the business case and enter into contracts to purchase properties which meet the business case, costs and available funding.

REASON FOR DECISION:

To utilise funding available from the Empty Homes Programme and Housing Development Programme for purchase of former Right to Buy (RtB) Council properties to support the increase in affordable housing provision and contribute to meeting the Council's one for one replacement target for right to buy properties.

The meeting closed at 4.35 pm.